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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

INTERDIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS,

LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company,
INTERDIGITAL TECHNOLOGY
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, and
IPR LICENSING, INC., a Delaware corporation,

Plaintiffs,
V. ' : C.A. No. 1:11-¢cv-00654-MSG

HUAWEI TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD., a : JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Chinese corporation, FUTUREWEI :
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. D/B/A HUAWEI
TECHNOLOGIES (USA) AMERICA, a Texas
corporation, LG ELECTRONICS, INC., a Korean
corporation, LG ELECTRONICS U.S.A., INC.,

a Delaware Corporation, LG ELECTRONICS
MOBILECOMM U.S.A., INC., a California
Corporation, NOKIA CORPORATION, a Finnish
corporation, NOKIA INC., a Delaware corporation, :
ZTE CORPORATION, a Chinese corporation,

ZTE (USA) Inc., a New Jersey corporation,

Defendants.

AMENDED COMPLAINT

This is an action for patent infringement. Plaintiffs InterDigital Communications,
LLC, InterDigital Technology Corporation, and IPR Licensing, Inc. (collectively “InterDigital”
or “&1%: .P.Iair;tiffs’;), through thelr unders1gned c&uiséi, bnng ﬂ’].’LS acti_;iﬁ aéajﬁst..ﬁe.féﬁdén‘-cs |
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., FutureWei Technologies, Inc. d/b/a Huawei Technologics
(USA), LG Electronics, Inc., LG Electronics U.S.A., Inc., LG Electronics Mobilecomm U.S.A.,
Tnc., Nokia Corporation, Nokia Inc., ZTE Corporation, and ZTE (USA) Inc. (collectively the

“Defendants™). In support of this Amended Complaint, InterDigital alleges as follows:
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THE PARTTES

1. Plaintiff InterDigital Communications, LLC (“InterDigital Communications™) is a
Pennsylvania limited liability company, having its principal place of business at 781 Third
Avenue, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406-1409.'

2. Plaintiff InterDigital Technology Corporation (“InterDigital Technology”) is a
Delaware corporation, having its principal place of business at Hagley Building, Suite 105, 3411
Silverside Road, Concord Plaza, Wilmington, Delaware 19810-4812.

3. Plaintiff IPR Licensing, Inc. (“IPR Licensing”) is a Delaware corporation, having
its principal place of business at Hagley Building, Suite 105, 3411 Silverside Road, Concord
Plaza, Wilmington, Delaware 19810-4812.

4, On information and belief, defendant Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. is é.
| corporation organized and existing under the laws of the People’s Republic of China (“China™),
with its principal place of businfzss at Bantian, Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province 518129, People’s Republic of China.

5. ° On information and belief, defendant FutureWei Technologies, Inc. d/b/a Huawei
Techno]ogies (USA) is a Texas corporation and a subsidiary of Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd.,
| havmglts prmczpalplace of business at 1301 W. George Bush Highway, Suite 260, Richardson,

TX 75080.2

! In connection with an internal corporate reorganization, effective July 3, 2007,

InterDigital Communications Corporation (a Pennsylvania corporation) became InterDigital
Communications, LLC (a Pennsylvania limited liability company). The term “InterDigital”
includes InterDigital Communications Corporation.

‘ 2 Defendants Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. and FutureWei Technologies, Inc. d/b/a
Huawei Technologies (USA) are collectively referred to as “Huawei.”
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6.7 On information and belief, defendant LG Electronics, Inc. is a Korean corporation
with its principal place of business at LG Twin Tower 20 Yeouido-dong, Yeongdeungpo-gu,
Seoul 150-721 Republic of Korea.

7. On information and belief, defendant LG Electronics U.S.A., Inc. is a Delaware
corporation with its principal place of business at 1000 Sylvan Avénue, Englewood Cliffs,
NJ 07632.

8. On information and beliéf, defendant LG Electronics Mobilecomm U.S.A., Inc. is
a Cralifomia corporation with its principal place of business at 10101 Old Grove Road,
San Diego, CA 92131

0. On information and be;lief, defendant Nokia Corporation is a Finnish corporation,
having its principal place of business at Keilalahdentie 2-4, P.O. Box 226, FIN-00045 Espoo,
Finland. |

10. On information and belief, defendant Nokia Inc. is a Delaware corporation,
having its priﬁcipal place of business at 102 Corporate Park bﬁve, White P]ains, NY 10604.*

11. On information and belief, defendant ZTE Corporation is a Chinese corporation,
having its principal place of business at ZTE Plaza, No. 55 Hi-Tech Road South, Hi-Tech
| I.ndustrigl_.P.ark, NanshanD1str1ct, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province 518057, People’s Republic of

China.

3 Defendants LG Electronics, Inc., L.G Electronics U.S.A., Inc., and LG Electronics
Mobilecomm U.S.A., Inc. are collectively referred to as “LG.”

4 Defendants Nokia Corporation and Nokia Inc. are collectively referred to as “Nokia.”
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12. On information and belief, defendant ZTE (USA) Inc. is a New Jersey
corporation, having its principal place of business at 2425 N. Central Expy. Ste. 600, Richardson,

TX 75080.°

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13.  Thisis a complaint for patent infringement arising under 35 U.S.C. § 271 ef seq.
This Court has exclusive subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1.33 8(a).

14.  Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b) because Defendants afe
squect to personal jurisdiction in this district and therefore “reside” in this district under 28
U;S.C. §§ 1391(c) and 1400(b). On information and belief, Defendants sell various products and
do business throughout the United States, including within this judicial district.

15. Venue is proper in this judicial district under Title 28 United States
Code §§ 1391(b), (c), (d) and 1400(b) because this Court has personal jurisdiction over the
Defendants by virtue of the fact that, inter alia, each defendant has purposcfully availed itself of
the rights and beﬁeﬁts of Delaware law, regularly does -anci solicits business in Delaware, has
engaged in continuous and systematic contact with the State of Delaware, or derives substantial
revenue from things used or consumed in the State of Delaware. In addition, this Court has
personal jurisdiction over defendants LG Elec:troéic.s.U-S_-_A-_s_ Inc. and Nokia, Inc. because, on

information and belief, they are incorporated under the laws of Delaware.

THE PATENTS-IN-SUIT

16.  There are eight patents at issue in this action: United States Patent Nos.

7.349,540 (“the *540 patent”), 7,502,406 (“the 406 patent”), 7,536,013 (“the °013 patent”),

3 Defendants ZTE Corporation and ZTE (USA) Inc. are collectively referred to as “ZTE.”
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7,616,970 (“the *970 patent”), 7,706,332 (“the *332 patent”), 7,706,830 (“the 830 patent”),
7,970,127 (“the "127 patent”), and 8,009,636 (“the *636 patent”).

17.  The *540 patent is enﬁtled “Generation of User Equipment Identiﬁcaﬁon Specific
Scrambling Code for High Speed Shared Control Channel,” and issued on March .25, 2008 to
inventors Stephen Dick, Nader Bolourchi, and Sung-Hyuk Shin. InterDigital Technology owns
by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the 540 patent. A true and correct
copy of the *540 patent is attached to this Amended Complaint as Exhibit A.

18.  The *406 patent is entitled “Automatic Power Control System for a Code Division
Multiple Access (CDMA) Communications System,” and issued on March 10,- 2009 to inventors
John Kowalski, Gary R. Lomp, and Fatih Ozluturk. InterDigital Technology owns by
assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the *406 patent. A true and correct copy
of the *406 patent is attached to this Amended Complaint as Exhibit B.

19.  The *013 patent is entitled ‘ster Equipment Identification Specific Sqrambl_ing,”
and issued on May 19, 2009 1;0 inventors‘ Stephen G. Dick, Nader Bolourchi, and Sung-Hyuk
Shin. InterDigital Technology owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to
the *013 patent. A true and correct copy of the *(13 patent is attached to this Amended
Complaint as Exhibit C.

20.  The 970 patent is entitled “Dual Mode Unit .for Short Range, High Rate and
Long Range, Lower Rate Data Communications,” and issued on November 10, 2009 to inventor
Thomas E. Gorsuch. [PR Licensing owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and
to the *970 patent. A true and correct copy of the *970 patent is attached to this Amended

Complaint as Exhibit D.
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21.  The ’332 patent is entitled “Method and Subscri‘i-acr Unit for Performing Power
~ Control,” and issued on April 27, 2010 to inventors Fatih Ozluturk, Gary Lomp, and John
Kowalski. InterDigital Technology owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and
to the >332 patent. A true and correct copy of the *332 patent is attached to this Amended
Complaint as Exhibit E.

22.  The ’830 patent is éntitled “Method and Subscriber Unit for Performing an
Access Procedure,” and issued on April 27, 2010 to inventors Fatih Ozluturk and Gary -Lomp.
InterDigital Technology owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the *830
patent. A true and correct copy of the *830 patent is attached to this Amended Complaint as
Exhibit F.

23.  The’127 patent is entitled “User Equipment Identification Specific Scrambling,” _
and issued on June 28, 2011 to inventors Stephen Dick, Nader Bolourchi,rand Sung-Hyuk Shin.
InterDigital Technology owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the 127
ﬁ)atent. A true and correct copy 6f the ’127 patent is attached to this Aﬁlcnded Compiaint as
Exhibit G. | |

24.  The *636 patent is entitled “Method and Apparatus for Performing an Access
Procedure,” and issued on August 3.0, 2_011 to inventors Fatih Ozluturk and Gary Lomp.
InterDigital Technology owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the
’636 patent. A true and correct copy of the *636 patent is attached to this Amended Complaint as
Exhibit H.

COUNT I
INFRINGEMENT OF THE *540 PATENT

25.  InterDigital repeats each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-24 as if set forth

fully herein.
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26.  In viclation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawei is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing inﬁingeﬁlent of, the *540 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wircless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, inClﬁding but not limited to the Comet U8§150, Tap U7519, USB'Connect 900, 87, Ideos
X6, and USB Connect Force 4G, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

27.  On information and belief, Huawei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge
of the *540 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,
Huawei received notice of the >540 patent upon the_: service of the original Comi:)laint by
InterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawei received
notice of the 540 patent upoh the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
Trade Commission that included claim charts. detailing Huawei’s infringement of the ’540
patent.

28.  The accused Huawei products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Speciﬁcally, the accused Huawei pfoducts identified by IntérDigital ;[o date
that are désigned to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the
HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically
designed to so opefate, they have no sgbstantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Huawei
contributorily infringes the *540 patent. :

29.  On infén_nation and belief, Huawei, with knowledge of the *540 patent, and
without authority, has actively induc_ed and continues to actively induce infringement by end-
users of at least one claim of the *540 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing
the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wirelesé devices with 3G

capabilities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the
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LAY

*540 patent. On information and beljef, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia,
designing and introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by publishing manuals and prbmotional literature describing and instructing in
the loper'ation of the accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and
technical assistance to its customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that
infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Huawei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such infringemex_it since at least the date of the
filing of the original Complaint" in this action, when hltchigital provided to known
representatives of Huawei a copy of the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the
Interﬁational Trade Commission detailing the aliegations of Huawei’s inﬁ‘ingemcnt of the
’540 patent.

730. On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *540 patent. Huawei has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

31. Hﬁawei’s 'past and continuing infringement of the ;540 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement
is enjoined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to
InterDigital. |

32. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the ’540 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x 999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaline, and LUU-2100TT USBConnect Turbo, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by

this Court.
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33.  On information and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *540 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG received
notice of the *540 patent upon the service of this Amended Complaint by InterDigital upon L.G at
the addresses referenced herein, concurrently with this filing.

34. | The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused LG products identified by InterDigital to date that are designéd
to be used- in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with fhe HSUPA, and/or
HSPA-+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they
have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the 540
patent. |

35. On information and belief, LG, with knowledge of the “’540 patent, and witﬁout
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claLm of the *540 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) by intentionally inducing the use,
1mp0rtat10n offer for sale and/or sale of mﬁmgmg Wn'eless devwes with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the 540 patent.
On information and belief, LG actively induced infringement by, infer alia, designing and
introducing into the stréam of commerce infringing Wirel.ess devi_c_e_s_ witl; 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
aécused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

36. On information and belief, LG has continued its inﬁingément despite having

notice of the *540 patent. LG has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.



Case 1:11-cv-00654-RGA Document 21 Filed 10/03/11 Page 10 of 56 PagelD #: 366

37. LG’S paét and continuing infringement of the *540 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until LG’S infringement is enjoined by
this Court, it will continue fo cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

38. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringem’ent of, the 540 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wﬁcless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not 1imitéd to the Rocket 2.0 4G Laptop Stick, V9, F160, Rocket 3.0 Laﬁtop
Stick, and 4G HotSpot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

39.  On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *540 patent éince before the oﬁginal Complaint in this action was filed. In addition, ZTE
received notice of the *540 patent upon the servic;e of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein. In ad,dition, ZTE received notice of the 540 patent
upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commission that
‘includedl claim charts detailing ZTE’s infringement of the *540 patent.

40.  The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused ZTE products identiﬁed by InterDigital to date that are -
designed to be used in UMTS (W_CDB&A). are configured to comply with the HSDPA, HSUPA,
and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, |
they have no substantial nbn~inﬁfinging uses. Accordingly, ZTE contributorily infringes the *540
patent.

41. | On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the *540 patent, and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at

least one claim of the *540 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,

10
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importation, offer for sale, and/or rsale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *540 patent.
- On information and belief, ZTE actively induced infringement by, infer alid, designing and

infroducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accused devices in an infringing manner and By offering support and technical assistance (o its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, ZTE has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that ZTE’s acts
induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in this
acti_on, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint
(including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of
ZTE’s infringement of the *540 patent.

42.  On information ar;a bélief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the 540 patent. ZTE has committed.and is cdmxﬁitting willful patent infringement.

43. ZTE’s past an'd..continujng infringement of the *540 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

COUNT II
- INFRINGEMENT OF THE *406 PATENT

44.- | InterDigital repeats each and every ailegation of paragraphs 1-43 as if fully set
forth herein.

45, In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271-, Huawei is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *406 patent by making, using,

importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United

11
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States, including but not Iirnited to the Huawet USB Connect 900, Comet U8150', Tap U7519,
97, Ideos X6, USB Connect Force 4G, M228, M7 570, M735, Ascend M860, Ascend 1T M865, Jet
2.0 Laptop Stick, M835, EC5805, and EC1705, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court. |

46.  On information and belief, Huawei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge
of the 406 i)atent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,
Huawei received notice of the *406 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by
-InterDigital upon Huawei at thé addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawei received
notice of the *406 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Huéwei’s infringement of the 406
patent.

47.  The aécused Huawei products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA or CDMA2000 system. _'Speciﬁ.cally, the accused Huawei products identified by
InterDigital to date that are design_ed‘to beusedina UMTS (WCDMA) system ére configured to
comply with the Release 99, Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. The
accused products designed to be used in a 3G CDMA2000 system are configured to comply with
the 1xRTT standards, and some are further configured to comply with EV—DO standards.
Because the accused products are specifically des.ign.ed to so operﬁ;[e, they have"no substantial
non—inﬁinging uses. Accordingly, Huawei contributorily infringes the *406 patent.

48. On information and belief, Huawei, with knowledge of the 406 patent, and
without authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-
users of at least one claim of the *406 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing

the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G

12
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capabilities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the
*406 patent. On information and belief, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia,
designing and introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by pubiishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in
the oﬁeration of the accused devices in an .infn'nging manner and by offering support and
technical assistance to its customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that
infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Huawei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such iﬁﬁingement since at least the date of the
filing of the originai Complaint in this action, when InterDigital provided to known
representatives of Huawei a copy of the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the_
International Tradé Commission détailing the allegations of Huawei’s infringeme;nt of the *406
patent.

49, On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *406 Patept. Hﬁawei haé committed and is committing willful patent iﬁfringement.

50. Huawei;s past and continuing infringement of the 406 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infriﬁgement
is e;njoined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to
InterDigital. . -

51, TIn violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *406 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect

Adrenaline, LUU-2100TI USBConnect Turbo, Revolution (VS910), VS740 Ally, VS750

13
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Fathom, LW690 Optimus C, LS670 Optimus S, US670 Optimus U, VM760 Optimus V, V5660
Vortex, VL600, and US760 Genesis, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

52. On information and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *406 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG received
notice of the *406 patent upon the service of this Amended Complaint by InterDigital upon LG at
the addresses referenced .herein, concurrently with this ﬁling. -

53.  The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA

" or CDMA2000 system. Specifically, the accused LG products identified by InterDigital to date
that are designed to be used ina UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the
HSUPA and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused products designed to be used in a 3G
CDMAZ2000 sysféni are rconﬁgured to comply with the EV-DO Rev. A standard. Because the
accﬁsed products are specifically designed to sc; operate, they have no substantial non-infringing
uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the 406 patent.

54. On jhformation and Belief, LG, with knowledge of the ’406 patent,' and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the *406 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, _offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to éncourage, and in fa;:t encouraéing, end—usefs to directly infringe the ’406 .patent.
On information and belief, LG actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
éccused devices in an infringing manner and by offeﬁng support and technical assistance to its

customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

14
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55.  On information and belief, LG h_as continued its infringemeﬁt despite having
notice of the *406 patent. LG has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

56.  LG’s past aﬁd continuing infringement of the 406 patent has caused 'inonetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Uniess and until LG’s infringement is enjoined by
this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. |

57. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing
the *406 patent by making, using, importing, offering for éale, and/or selling wireless devices
with 3G capabilities in the United States, including but not limited to the 2730, C5-04, C2-01,
3710, 6350, 5230, 6790 E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03, C6, C6-01, E73, N8, Astounci C7,E5,
E7, E6, and Twist 7705 and will continue to do so unless enJomed by this Court.

58.  Nokia received notice of the 406 patent upon the service of the ongmal
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Nokia
_received notice of the *406 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 compiaint ﬁl}%d in the
'hteﬁationéi Trade Commissiqn that included claim charts detailiﬁg Nokia’s inﬁiﬁgemént of the
°406 patent. |

59.  The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Spe(nﬁcally, the accused Nokia products identified by InterDigital to date that
are designed to be used in UMTS (W CDMA) are configured to comply with the HSDPA
HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so
opera;ce, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infringes the *406 patent. |

60. On information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the *406 patent, and without

authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at

15
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least one claim of the 013 ‘patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,

importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, -
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the 406 patent.

On information and belief, Nokia actively induced infringement by, inter alia, aesigning and

introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wircless devices with 3G capabilities, and by

publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the

accused devices in an infringing ménner and by offering support and technical assistance to its

customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that Nokia’s

acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in

this action, when IﬂterDigital provided to known represeﬁtatives of Nokia a copy of the

complaint (including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the |
allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the *406 patent.

61. On information and belief, kaia has conﬁnued ité inﬁingeme_nt despite having
notice of tﬁe "406 patent. Nokia has committed and is committing Willfui patent infringement.

62.  Nokia’s past and continuing infringement of the *406 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enj oined
by this Court, it will continﬁe to canse monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. |

63. In ﬁolation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily jnfringing and/or inducing infringement of, the "406 patent by manufacturing,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or sclling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not limited to the Rocket Z.d 4G Laptop Stick, F160,- V9, Rocket 3.0

4G Laptop Stick, 4G HotSpot, Agent E520, Essenze C70, C79, CAPTR TI/A210, Salute,
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MSGMS II, TXTMS 3G, A605, Pecl, and Fivespot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court.

64.  On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowlédge of
the *406 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition, ZTE
recéived notice of fhe *406 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein, In addition, ZTE received notice of the *406 patent
upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commission that
included claim charts detailing ZTE’s iﬁfringément of the *406 pateﬁt.

65.  The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in 2 3G WCDMA
or CDMA2000 system. Specifically, the accused ZTE préducts identified by InterDigital to date
that are designed to be use;i in UMTS (WCDMA) are conﬁgured to comply with the Release 99,
Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused prbducts désigned to be
used in a 3G CDMA2000 system are configured to comply with the 1xRTT standards, and some
aré further configured to comply with the EV-DO standards. Becaus;i: the accused products are
specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordﬁlgly,
ZTE confributorily infringes the *406 patent.

66.  On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the *406 patent, and wi‘;hqut
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the *406 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact cncouraging,r end-users to directly infringe the ’406 patent.
On information and belief, ZTE aétively induced infringement by, infer alia, designing and

introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wircless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
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publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
_accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage ﬁse of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, ZTE has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that ZTE’s acts
induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the oﬁginal Complaint in this
action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZIE 2 copy of the complaint
(including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of
ZTE’s infringement of the *406 patent.

| 67. On information and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *406 patent. ZTE has committed and is committing wiltful patent infringement.

68.  ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the *406 patent has caused monetary

damage and irreparablé injury to InterDigital. Unless and until ZTE’s in.'Eringgment is enjoined-
by this Court, it will continue to causc monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

: : COUNT III
INFRINGEMENT OF THE *013 PATENT

69.  InterDigital repeats each and every al}egation of paragraphs 1-68 as if fully set
forth herein. |

70.  In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawei is now, and has been, ditectly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the 013 patent by makiné, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in &e United
States, including but not limited to the Comet U8150, Tap U7519, USB Connect 900, 87, Ideos
X6, and USB Connect Force 4G, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Couzt.

71.  On information and belief, Huawei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge

of the *013 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,
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Huawei received notice of the *013 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by
TnterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawei received
notice of the *013 patent ﬁpon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Huawei’s infringement of the 013
patent.

72. The accused Huawei products are specifically designed to be qsed in a 3G
WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Huawei products identified by InterDigital to date
that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the
HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standafds. Eecaus_e the accused products are specifically
designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Huawei
contributorily infringes the 013 patent.

73.  On information and belicf, Huawei, with knowledge of the *013 patent, and
without authority, has actively induced and conﬁnues to activeiy induce infringement by end-
users 6f at least one claim of the;, *013 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by -intentionallyh inducing
the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging,- end-users to directly infringe the
"013 patent. On information and belief, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia?
designing and introducing into the stream of commerée infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in
the operation of the aécused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and
technical assistance to its customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that
infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Huawei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct

infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the
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filing of the original Complaint in this action, when InterDigital provided to known
representatives of Huawei a copy of the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the
International Tfade Commission detailing the allegations of Huawei’s infringement of the ’ 013
patent.

74. On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the 013 patent. Huawel has commiﬁed and is committing willful patent infringement.

75.  Huawei’s past and continuing infringément of  the 013 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement
is enjoined by this Couﬁ, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to
InterDigital.

76.  TIn violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly inﬁ‘ing:ing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the ’01 3 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but nof Iimited.to_ the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaline, and LUU-2100TI USBConnect Turbo, an& will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court.

77. O_n_i_nf_qrmat__ion and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive kJ_Jow_ledge Qf
the *013 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG received
notice of the *013 patent upon the service of this Amended Complaint by InterDigital upon LG at
the addresses referenced herein, concurrently with this filing.

78.  The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused LG products identified by InterDigital to date that are designed

to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the HSUPA, and/or
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HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they
have no substantial non—iﬁfringing uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the 013
patent.

79. On information and belief, LG, with knowledge of the *013 patent, and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the *013 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
- importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of inhfringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the "013 patent.
On information and belief, LGV actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the streamlof commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literatﬁre describing and instructing in the operation of the
raccused devices in an iri'fringihg manner and by offering support ami technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

80. 'On information and belief, LG has conﬁnued its infringemeﬁt despite having
notice of the 013 patent. LG has committed and is commiﬁing willful patent infringement.

81. LG’s past and continuing infringement of the "013 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until LG’s infringement is enjoined by
thlS Court, 1t will conﬁnﬁé to cé.use ﬁloﬁéta.ry démage and irreparable injury to 1nteiDigi{aj.

.82. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contribﬁtorily infringing and/or inducing mﬁingement of, the *013 patent by manufacturing,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the

United States, including but not limited to the 6350, 5230, 6790, E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03,
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Co, -C6-01, E73, N8, Astound C7, E5, E7,-and E6, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court.

83.  On information and belief, Nokia has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the 013 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition, Nokia
received notice of the 013 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Nokia received notice of the *013
]?atent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commisston
that included claim charts detailing Nokia’s infringement of the 013 patent.

g4.  The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Nokia products identified by InterDigital to date that
are designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the HSDPA,
HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because‘the accused products are si)eciﬁcally designed to so

~operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infriﬁges the ’013 patent.
| 85. On information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the *013 patent, and without
authotity, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the 013 patent, under 35 U.S;C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation; offér for salé, and/dr sale of inﬁihging wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *013 patént.
On information and belief, Nokia actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the

accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
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customers that encourage use of the_ accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge orf end-users® direct infringement and that Nokja’s
acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint m
this action, when InterDigital provided to known represcntatives of Nokia a copy of the
domplaint (including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the
allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the *013 patent.

86. On information and belief, Nokia has continued its infringement despite having . |
notice of'the *013 patent. Nokia has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

87. Nokia’s past and continuing infringement of the *013 patent has caused monetary
damage a;_nd irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enjoined
by th_is Court, it will continue to cause monetary da;mage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

88.  In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *013 patent by manufacturing,
using, 'imporﬁng, 6ffering _for sale, and/or sglling vviréless de\;iceé' with 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not limited to the Rocket 2.0 4G Lai)tép Stick, F160, V9, Rocket 3.0
4G Laptop Stick, 4G HotSpot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

89. On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the ’0-13 paterﬁ since before the oﬁgmal Complla'mt. in this action was filed. In additidn, ZTE
received notice of the *013 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upoﬁ ZTE at the addresses referenced hereiﬁ. In addition, ZTE received notice of the *013 patent
upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commission that

included claim charts detailing ZTE’s infringement of the 013 patent.
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90. The acéused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the .accused ZTE products identified by InterDigital to date that are
designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply‘ with £he HSDPA, HSUPA,
and/or HéPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate,
they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, ZTE contributorily infringes the
’013 patent. |

91.  On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the *013 patent, and without
éuthority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the 013 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilit:ies,:
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *013 patent.
On information and belief,- ZTE actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introduéing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless .devi;ces with 3G capabilities, and by
publiéhing manuals and promotional literafmc describing and iﬁstruéting in the operation of the
accused devices in-an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accu'sedr products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, ZTE has had actual knowledge of end-users’ ciirect infringement and that ZTE’s acts
inducéd such iﬁﬁihgerﬁent since at .1east the. date of the ﬁhng of thé oﬁginal Complaint in this
action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint
(including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Corninission detailing the allegations of
ZTE’s infringement of the *013 patent.

92.  On information and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despitc having

notice of the *013 patent. ZTE has commiited and is committing willful patent infringement.
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93.  ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the 013 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

COUNT 1V
INFRINGEMENT OF THE 970 PATENT

94.  InterDigital repeats each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-93 as if fully set
forth herein.

95. In violation of 35U8.C. 3§ 271, Hﬁawei is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement -of, the *970 patéht by manufacturing,
usiﬁg, iinpoﬁing, offering for sale, and/or selling WiI’ClGSVS deﬁces with SG capabi]itiés in the'
United States, including but not limited to the Ascend II (M865), and will continue to do so
unless enjoined by this Court. |

96. On information and beﬁef, Huawei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge
of the *970 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,
Huawei received notice of the *970 patent upon the sérvice of the original Complaint by
InterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawei received
notice of the *970 patent upon the seMce of a july 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Huawei’s infringement of the 970
patent. |

97.  The accused Huawel products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA or CDMA2000 system and, in some instances, also in an IEEE 802 system.
Speciﬁcally, the accused Huawei products identified by InterDigital to date that are designed to
be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the HSUPA and/or

HSPA+ standards. The accused products designed to be used in a 3G CDMAZ000 system are
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configured to comply with the EV-DO Revision A standard. The accused products further
designed to also be used in an IEEE 802 system are configured to comply with at least IEEE
| 802.11. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they have no
substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Huawei contributorily infringes the *970 patent.

98. On informatioﬁ and belief, Huawei, W1th knowledge of the *970 patent, and
without authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce inﬁingement by end-
users of at least one claim of the 970 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing
the use, importation, offer for sé,le, and/or sale of infringing wiréless devices with 3G
capabilities, intending to encourage, and 1n fact encouraging, cnd__—users to directly infringe the
*970 patent. On information and belief, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia,
designing and introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by publishing manuals and promotional rliterature describing and instructing in
the operation of the accused devic;:s in -an infringing manner and by offering support and
technical assistance to its customers that:encéurage use of the accﬁsed producfs in wa.ys that
infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Hua;)vei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the
filing of the original Complaint in this action, when InterDigital provided to .knqwn
representatives of Huawei a copy of the comﬁlaint (including claim charts) filed in the
International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of Huawei’s infringement of the *970
patent.

99.  On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having

notice of the *970 patent. Huawei has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
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100. Huawel’s past and continuing infringement of the 970 patent has caused
monetafy damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement
fs enjoined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable mnjury to
Interbigital.

101. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing, |
contributorily infringing aﬁd/or inducing infringement of, the 970 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States mcludmg but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, ADG00 USBConnect

" Adrenaline, LUU-2100TI USBConnect Turbo, Revolution (VS910), VS740 Ally, VS750 |
| Fathom, LW690 Optimus C, LS670 Optimus S, US670 Optimus U, VM760 Optimus V, VS660
Vortex, VL600, and US760 Genesis, and will continue to do so unless enjéined by this Court. |

102. On information and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *970 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG réceiyed
notic.é of the ’97d patent ui)on the service of this Amended Complaint b3; InterDigital upoh LG at
the addresses réferenced herein, concurrently with this ﬁling.

103. The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
or CDMA2000 system and, in some instances, also in an IEEE 802 system. Speciﬁcally, th¢
accused LG products identified by InterDigital to date that are designed to be used in a UMTS
(WCDMA) system are conﬁgured to comply with the HSUPA and/or HSPA+ standards. The
accused products designed to be used ina 3G CDMAZOOO system are configured to comply with
the EV-DO Revision A standard. The accused products further designed to also be used in an

IEEE 802 system are _cbnﬁgu:red to comply with at least IEEE 802.11. Because the accused
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products are specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses.
Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the 970 pateht.

104. On information and belief, LG, with knowledge of the *970 patent, and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the ’970 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of mfringing wireless devices with 3G capabilitieé,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *970 patent.
On information and belief, LG actively induced infringerent by, inter alia, designing and '
introducing into the strearﬁ of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

105. On information and belief, LG has continued its infringement despite having
notiée of the *970 patent.- LG has committed and isrcommitting ﬁllﬁl pé.tent infringement.

106. LG’s past and continuing infringement of the *970 patent has caused monetary

damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until LG’s infringement is enjoined by

this Coust, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital

107. Tn violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing,
coht'ributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *970 patent by manufacturing,
ﬁsing, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the

| United States, including but not limited to the N8 and C7 (Astound), and will continue to do so

unless enjoined by this Court.
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108. Nokia received notice of the 970 patent upon the service of the original
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Nokia
received notice of the 970 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the
International Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Nokia’s infringement of the
*970 patent.. |

109. The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system and, in some instances, also in an IEEE 802 system. Speéiﬁcally, the accused
Nokia products identified by InterDigital to date fhat are designed to be used in UMTS
(WCDMA) are configured to comply with the HSUPA and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused
products further desiéied to also be used in an IEEE 802 sjzstefn are configured to comply with
at least IEEE 802.11. Because the accused products are specifically designéd to so operate, they
have no substantial non-inﬁinging uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily infringes the 970

patent.

1‘10. Oﬁ information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the ’97G patent, and without |
authority, has acti{reiy induced and continués to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the *970 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capgbilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the 970 patent.
On information and belief, Nokia actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wircless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing maﬁuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accused devices in an infringing ma;rmer and by offering support and technical assistance to its

customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
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In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that Nokia’s "
acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint 1n
this action, when EterDigital provided to known r_epresentatives of Nokia a copy of the
complaint (including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the
allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the *970 patent.

111. On information and belief, Nokia has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *970 patent. Nokia has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

112. Nokia’s past and continuing infringement of the *970 patent has caused monetary.
damage aﬁd irreparable injury to IﬁterDi_gital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

113. Tn violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing;
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the 970 patent by manufacturing, |
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United Statés, including but not limited to the V9, and ﬁll continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court. 7. -

114. | On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of 7
the *970 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition, ZTE
received notice of the *970 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, ZTE received notice of the 970 patent
upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commission that
included claim charts detailing ZTE’s infringement of the "970 patent.

115. The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA

or CDMA2000 system and, in some instances, also in an IEEE 802 system. Specifically, the
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accused ZTE products identified by InterDigital to date that are designed to be_: used in UMTS
(WCDMA) are configured to cémply with the HSUPA and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused
products further designed to also be used in an IEEE 802 system are configured to compiy with
at least IEEE 802.11. Because the accused producté are specifically designed to so operate, they
| have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, ZTE contributorily infringes the *970
patent.

116. On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the *970 patent, and without

_ authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claﬁn of the *970 patent, under 35 U.S.C. §'727 1(b), by intentionally inducing the use,

importation, offer for sale, ané/or sale of infringing wircless devices with 3G capabilitics,

intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the 970 patent.

On information and belief, ZTE_activcly induced infringement by, infer alia, designing and

introducing into the stream of commerce inﬁinging wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by

publishing manuals and promotional iite_rature describ'in_g and instructing in the .ope_raf[ion of the

accuséd devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its

customers that encourage use of the accused prodﬁcts in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

induced such infringement siﬁce at lcast the date of the ﬁling. of the original Complaint in this

action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint

(including claim charts) filed in the International Tradé Commission detailing the allegations of

ZTE’s inﬁingemeht of the *970 patent.
117. On information and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having

notice of the *970 patent. ZTE has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
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118. 7ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the *970 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

COUNT V
INFRINGEMENT OF THE 332 PATENT

119. InterDigital repeats each and every allegatibn of paragraphs 1—118 as if fully set
fdrth herein.

120. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawei is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *332 patent by manufacturing,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United States, 'includjng but not limited-to the Comet U8150, Tap U7519, USBConnect 900, 57,
Ideos X6, USB Connect Force 4G, MZZQ, M750, M735, Ascend M86_O, Ascend II M865, Jet 2.0
Laptop Stick, M835, EC5805, and EC1705, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this
Court.

121. On information and belief, H#awei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge
of the ’332 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,

"Huawei received .notice of the *332 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by

InterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawel received
notice of the >332 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
"frade Commi;sion that included claim charts detailing Huawei’s infringement of the ’332
patent..

122.  The accused Huawei products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA or CDMA2000 system. Specifically, the accused Huawei products identified by

InterDigital to date that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to
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comply with the Release 99, Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. The
accused products designed to be used in a 3G CDMAZ2000 system are configured to comply with
the 1xRTT standards, and some are further configured to comply with EV-DO standards.
Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial
non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Huawei contributority infringes the *332 patent. |

123._ On information and belicf, [uawei, with knowledge of the '332 patent, and
without authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-
users of at least one claim of the >332 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271Cb), by intentionally inducing
the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless dev1ces with 3G
capabilities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the
’332 patent. On information and belief, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia,
desigrﬁng and introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by publishing manuals and promotional literature &_escribﬁig and instructing in
the pperation of th;: accused devices in an infringing manner and by 6ffering éuppbrt and
technical assistance to its éustomers tﬁat encourage use of the accused products in ways that
infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Huawei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such i_n;_&_i_n_ge;nent sipce_at least the date of the
filing of the original Complaint in this action, when InterDigital provided to known
representatives of Huawei a copy of the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the
International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of Huawei’s infringement of the 332
patent.

124.  On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having

notice of the *332 patent. Huawei has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
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125. Huawei’s past and continuing infringement of the 332 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement
is enjoined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetarj damage and irreparable injury to
TnterDigital.

126. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing inﬁingement of, the >332 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaline, LUU-2100TI USBConnect Tuﬂ)o, Revolution (VS910), VS740 Ally, VS';lSO
Fathom, . W690 Optimus C, LS670 Optimus S, US670 Opt@us U, VM760 Optimus V, V5660
Vortex, VL600, and US760 Genesis, and will continue to do so unless enjoine& by this Court.

127. On _infonnation and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
‘the "332 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG received
-notice of the ’332 pafent upon the service of this Amended Compla."int by InterDigiteil upém LG at
the addresses referenced herein, concurrently with this filing.

128.  The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
or CDMA2000 system. Sp_f_:ciﬁcally,. th¢ acc_use;d LG p;qducts identified by InterDigital to date
that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the
HSUPA and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused products designed to be used in a 3G
CDMA2000 system are configured to comply with the EV-DO Rev. A standard. Becausé the
aécused products are specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing

uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the *332 patent.
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129. On information and belicf, LG, with knowledge of the *332 patent, and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by eﬁd—users of at
least one claim of the *332 patent, under 35 U.S.C. §7 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
inténdiﬁg to encourage, and 'in fact encourdging, end-users to directly infringe ther *332 patent.
On information and belief, LG actively induced infringement by, infer alia, designihg and
introducing into thé stream of commerce inﬁiﬁging Wireleés devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of ther
accused devices in aﬁ rinfringring manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

130. On information and belief, LG has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *332 patent. LG has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

131. LG’s-pas‘g and continuing infringement of the *332 patent has caused monetary
da:thage and irrgparéble injury to InterDigital. Unless and ﬁntﬂ LG"s infringement is enjoined by
this Couut, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

132. In Violétion of 35U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing
the *332 patent by manufacturing, using, importing, offeri_ng_for sak_:, and/lor. selling wireless
devices with 3G capabilitics in the United States, including but not Iimjted to the 2730, C5-04,
C2-01, 3710, 6350, 5230,.6790, E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03, C6, C6-01, E73, N8, Astound
C7,E5, E7, E6, and Twist 7705, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

133. Nokia reccived notice of the °332 patent upon the service of the original
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Nokia

received notice of the “332 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the
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International Trade Commission that includeci claim charts detailing Nokia’s infringement of the
’332 patent.
| 134. The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Nokia products identified by InterDigital to date that
are designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with ;he HSDPA,
.HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because tﬁe accused products are specifically désigned to so
operate, they have no substantial non;illfringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infringes the *332 patent. |

135. On information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the 013 patent, and without
authority, has actively iﬁduced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the 332 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infiinging wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *332 patent.
On‘ information and belief, Nokia actively inducu;ed inﬁingemenf by,:inter alia, designing and
introducing into the s;cream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accus_ed_devices in.an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its‘
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that mﬁiﬁge tﬁe assétted claims.
In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct mnfringement and that Nokia’s
acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in
this action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of Nokia a copy of the
complaint (including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the

allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the 332 patent.
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136. On information and belief, Nokia has continued its infringement despite having
notice of tﬁe 332 patént. Nokia has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
137. Nokia’s past and continuing infringement of the 332 patent has caused monetary
" damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.
138. In violation of 35 U.8.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has beeﬁ, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the ’332 patent by manufacturing,
usmg, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not 11m1ted to the Rocket 2.0 4G Laptop Stlck F160, V9, Rocket 3.0
| 4G Laptop Stick, 4GKH0tSpot, Agent E520, Essenze C70, C79, CAPTR T/A210, Salute,
MSGMS I, TXTMS 3G, A605, Peel, and Fivespot, and will continue to do so unless eﬁjoined by
-this Court. |
139.  On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *332 patent since before the originai Compléint in this action was filed. Tn addition, ZTE
recéived notice of the ’332'pa;£ent upon the service of the original Complaint by InterDigital
upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, ZTE received notice of the *332 patent
upon the service of a July 26, 2011 oomplamt filed in the International Trade Commission that
included clalm charts detallmg ZTE’s mﬁmgement of the "332 patent |
140. The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
or CDMA2000 system. Specifically, the accused ZTE products identified by InterDigitalw to date
that are designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the Release 99,
Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. The accused products designed to be

used in a 3G CDMA2000 system are configured to comply with the IxRTT standards, and some
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are further configured to comply with the EV-DO standards. Becanse the accused products are
specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordiﬁgly,
- ZTE contributorily infringes the ’332 patent.

141. On information and belicf, ZTE, with knoﬁledge of the ’332 patent, and without
authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the *332 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *332 pafent.
On information and belief, ZTE actively induced infringement by, iﬁter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
~ publishing manuals and promotional litsrature descﬁbing and instructing in thé operation of the
accused devices in an inﬁ'inging manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
cusfomers that encourage use of the accused prdduc_ts in ways that infringe tﬁe_asscrted claims.
In addition, ZTE has ha& actualﬂ knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that ZTE’s acté
induced such ipﬁingement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in this
actioﬁ, when InfcerDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint
ZTE’s infringement of the >332 patent.

142. On information and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *332 patent. ZTE has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

143. ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the *332 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigitél. Unless and until ZTE’s infringement is enjoined

by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.
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COUNT VI
INFRINGEMENT OF THE ’830 PATENT

144. InterDigital repeats each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-143 as if fully set
forth herein. |

145. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawel isinow, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *830 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the .Comet U8150, Tap U7519, USBConnect 900, 57, Tdeos
X6, USB Connect Force 4G, and-will continue to do 50 imJess enjoined by this Court.

146. On informatién and belief, Huawei has had actual and/or constructive knowledge
of the 830 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition,
Huawei received notice of the 830 patent upon the service of the original Complaint by
InterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Huawei received
notice of the *830 patent uponr the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International
Trade Commission-that included claim charts detailing'Huav‘vei’s infringement of the ’330
patent..

147. The accused Huawei products are specifically designed to be used in a
3G WCDMA system. Specificaily, the accused Huawei..products.identiﬁ.cd.'.by.. InterDigital to
date that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with
the Release 99, Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused
products are specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses.
Accordjngiy, Huawei contributorily infringes the *830 patent.

148. On information and belief, Huawei, with knowledge of the 830 patent, and

without authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-
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users of at least one claim of the *830 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing
the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G
. capébﬂities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the
’830 patent. On information and belief, Huawei actively induced infringement by, inter alia,
desiéning and introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and by publishing manuals and prdmotional litefature describing and instructing in
the operation of the accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and
techmical assistance to its customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that
" infringe the asserted claims. In addition, Huawei has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
infringement and that Huawei’s acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the
filing of the original Complaint in this action, when InterDigital provided to known
-representatives of Huawei a copy of the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the
International Trade Commission deftziiling the allegations of Huawei’s infringement of the *830
patent.
149. On inf;)rmation and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *830 patent. Huawei has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
150. Huawei’s past and continuing infringement of thé ’830 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury fo InterDigital.. Unless and ﬁﬁtil Hua\;rei’s infringement
is enj(.)ined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to
InterDigital.
151. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *830 patent by making, using,

importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
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States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaline, and LUU-2100TI USBConnect Turbo, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court.

152.  On information and belief, LG has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *830 patent since before the filing of this Amended Complaint. In addition, LG ;‘eceived
notice of the *830 patent upon the service of fhis Amended Complaint by InterDigital upon LGat
the addresses referenced hérein, concurrently with this filing. |

153. The accused LG products are specifically designed to bé used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused LG products identified by InterDigital to daté that are designed
to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the HSUPA, and/or
HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operé,te, they
have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the

"830 patent.

154. 'On information and belief, LG, with hiowieage of the *830 i)ateﬁt, and without
authority, has acﬁvely induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of a;f
least one claim of the *830 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
i1_r_1_p0_r§ati0n,_ offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devilces” With 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the 830 patent.
On information and belief, LG .actively induced infringement by, infer alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instfucting in the operation of the
accused devices in an inﬁ-ingiﬁg manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its

customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
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155.  On information and belief, LG hés continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *830 patent. LG has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

156. LG’spastand cont.inuing infringement of the 830 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until LG’s infringement is enjoined by
this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

157. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing
the 830 patent by making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices
with 3G capﬁbilities lin the United States, including but not limited to the 2730, C5-04, C2-01,
3710, 6350, 5230, 6790, E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03, C6, C6-01, E73, N8, Astound C7, E5,
E7, and E6, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

158. Nokié received notice of the 830 patent upon the service of the original
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referencéd herein. In addition, Nokia
received notice of the *830 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the
Tnternational Trade Commission that included claiﬁ charts detaﬂing Nokia’s infringement of the
’830 patent. |

159. The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Nokia products ide_nti.ﬁed by InterDigital to date that
are designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the HSDPA,
HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so
operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infringes the *830 patent.

160. On information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the 830 patent, and without

authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
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least one claim of the *830 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by infentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infﬁnge the 830 patent.
On information and belief, Nokia actively induced infringement by, infer alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce inﬁinéing wireless devices with 3G capabiliﬁes, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of tﬁe
accused de‘}ices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge of end-users’ dﬁect infringement and that Nokia’s
acts induced such infringement since at least the date_t_)f the filing o-f the original Complaint in
this action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of Nokia a copy of the
- complaint (including clairh charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the
allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the f830 patent.

161. On information and belief, 'Nokia has contihued‘ its infringement desPite.having
notice of the *830 patent‘. Nokia has committed and is committing willful patent inﬁingement.

162. Nokia’s past and continuing infringement of the *830 patent has caused monetary
d@_agq and irrep.aral?.le injury to InterDigjtal. Unles_s_ and until Nokia’s inﬁ'ingement' is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

163. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *830 patent by manufacturing,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless deviceslwith 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not limited to the Rocket 2.0 4G Laptop Stick, F160, V9, Rocket 3.0

4G Laptop Stick, 4G HotSpot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.
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164. On information and belief, ZTE has had actual and/or constructive knowledge of
the *830 patent since before the original Complaint in this action was filed. In addition, ZTE
received ndtice of the *830 patent upon the service of the ‘original Complaint by InterDigital
upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, ZTE rec'eived notice of the *830 patent
upon the-servi__ce of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the International Trade Commission that
included claim charts detailing ZTE’s ihﬁingement of the *830 patent.

165.  The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
- system. Specifically, the accused ZTE products identified by InterDigital to date th.';tt are

designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the Release 99, Release
4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+l standards. Because the accused products-are specifically
designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, ZTE
coﬁtributorily infringes the *830 patent. | |
166. On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the *830 patent, and jNithout
éuthority, has actively induced.an(-l continﬁes to actively induce infringement by end-use-rs of at
least one claim of the ’830 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities,
intending to encourage, and in fact f:ncéqra%ging, end.-users to directly infringe the *830 patent.
On information and belief, ZTE actively induced infringement by, infer alia, designing aﬂd
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless dévices with 3G capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accused devices in.an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.

In addition, ZTE has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that ZTE’s acts
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induced éuch infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in this
action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint
{(including claim chaﬁs) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of
7TE’s infringement of the *330 patent.

167. On information and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having
ﬁotice of the *830 patent. ZTE has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.

168. ZTE’s past and continﬂng infringement of the *830 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and untﬂ ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

COUNT VI
INFRINGEMENT OF THE *127 PATENT

169. InterDigital repeats each aﬁd e{zery allegation of paragraphs 1-168 as if fully set
forth herein. |

170. Inviolation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawei is now, and has b_eén, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *127 patent by making, uéing, |
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the Comet U8150, Tap U7519, USBConnect 900, S7, Ideos
X6, USB Connect Forée 4G, and will continite to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

171. Huawei received notice of the *127 patent upon the service of the original
Complaint by InterDigital upon Huawei at the addreéses referenced herein. In addition, Huawel
received notice of the *127 patent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the
International Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Huawei’s infringement of

the *127 patent.
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172.  The accused Huawel products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Huawei products identified by InterDigital to date
that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with the
HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused produbts are specifically
designed to so operate, tiley have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Huawei
contributorily infringes the *127 patent.

173. On information and belief, Huawei, with knowledge of the ’127 patent, and
without authority, has actively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-
users of at least one claim of the *127 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing
the use, importation, offer for sale, and/or sale 6f inﬁnging wireless devices with 3G
capabilities, intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the
’127 patent. On information and belief, Huawei éctiv.ely induced ‘inﬁ‘ixlgement by, inter alia,
designing and intreducing into the stream of commerce infringing vs:(ireless devices with 3G
capabilities, and By publiéhing manuals and promotional literature desc;ribing and instrlicting in
the oﬁeratidn of the accused devices in an infringing maﬁner and by offering ;%upport and
technical assistance to its customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that
infringe the asserted claims. In addit;ipn, Huawei haé had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct
inﬁingement and that Huawei’s acts induced such infringement since at least the date of the.
filing of the original Complaint in this. action, when InterDigital provided to known
representatives of Huawei a copy 6f the complaint (including claim charts) filed in the
International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of Huawei’s infringement of the ’127-

patent.
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| 174. On information and belief, Huawei has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *127 patent. Huawei has committed and is committing wiilful patent infringement.

175. Huawei’s past and continuing infringement of the *127 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury o InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement

‘is enjoined by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage aﬁd irreparable injury to
Il;terDigital.

176, Tn violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, LG is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *127 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for Salé, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaliné, and LUU-2100TT USBConnect Turbo, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court.

177. LG received notice of the 127 patent upon the service of this Amended
Complaint by InterDigitél uiaon LG at the addresées referencéd hereinj, coﬁcurrently with this
ﬁling.

178. The accused LG products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. . Speciﬁcally, the _accusgd LG produc’;s identified by InterDigital to date that are designed
to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are co.nﬁgured to comply with the HSUPA, w&or
HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they
have no substantial noﬁ-infringing uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the

127 patent.
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179. . LG’s past and continuing infringement of the 127 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until 1.G’s infringement is enjoined by
this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damagé and in‘eparableinj@ to InterDigital.

180. Inviolation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has beén, directly infringing,
contributorily inﬁ*inging and/or inducing infringement of, thé *127 patent by manufactuﬁng,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not limited to the 6350, 5230, 6790, E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03,
C6, C6-01, E73, N8, Astound C7, ES5, E7, and E6, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by
this Court. |

181. Nokia received notice of the 127 patent upon the service of the original
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, Nokia
received notice of the *127 patent upon the servi_ce of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed in the
Tnternational Trade Commission that included claim charts detailing Nokia’s infringement of the
"127 pafént. )

182. The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G
WCDMA system. Speciﬁcally, the accused Nokia products identified by InterDigital to date that
arc designed to be used in UMTS (W CDMA) are conﬁgqred to comply with the HSDPA,
HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so
operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infringes the "127 patent.

183. On information and belief, Nokia, with knowledge of the 127 patent, and without
authority, has ac_‘tively induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at

least one claim of the 127 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
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importation, offer for sale, and/or sale of infringing wireless devices with 3G capabilities, '
intending to encourage, and in fact encouragihg, end-users to direcﬁy infringe the 127 patent.
On information and belief, Nokia actively induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G ‘capabilities, and by
publishing manuals and promotional literature describing and instructing in the operation of the
accused devices in an infringing manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that iﬁfringe the asserted claims.
In addition, Nokia has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that Nokia’s
acts indﬁced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complail_lt in
this_ action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of Nokia a copy of the
complaint (including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the
allegations of Nokia’s infringement of the *127 patent‘.

184.  On information and belief, Nokia has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *127 patent. Nokia has committed and is éommi_ttiﬁg willful patent infringement.

185. Nokia’s past and continuing infﬁngerﬁent of the *127 patent has caused monetary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

- .186. | In violétioﬁ of .3.5 USC .§ 271, ZTE1s now, and has béeﬁ, difecﬂy iﬁﬁ;inging,

contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *127 patent by manufacturing,
using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
United States, including but not limited to the Rocket 2.0 4Gz Laptop Stick, Fl60, V9, Rocket 3.0

AG Laptop Stick, and 4G HotSpot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.
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187. ZTE received notice of the *127 patent upon the service of the original Complaint
by InterDigital upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein. In addition, ZTE received notice of
the *127 pafent upon the service of a July 26, 2011 complaint filed iﬁ the International Trade
Commission that included claim charts detailing ZTE’s infﬁngemént of the 127 pateht. '

188. The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused ZTE products identified by InterDigital to date that are
desiéned to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the HSDPA, HSUPA,
and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate,
they have no substantial non-infrin giﬁg uses. Accordingly, ZTE contributorily infringes the *127
patent.

189. On information and belief, ZTE, with knowledge of the 127 patent, and without
authority, has a‘ctivelyl induced and continues to actively induce infringement by end-users of at
least one claim of the 127 patent, under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by intentionally inducing the use,
irhportation, offer for saie,r and/or éale of infringiﬁg wireless devices with 3G capabili;cies,
intending to encourage, and in fact encouraging, end-users to directly infringe the *127 patent.
On information and belief, ZTE acti{fely induced infringement by, inter alia, designing and
introducing into the stream of commerce infringing wireless devices with 3G capabﬂiﬁes, and by
pubiiéhiﬁg manuals aﬁd brdrﬂéﬁonaliitérdtlﬁe descnbmg én.dsinstfucﬁng.iri the op'eréfioﬁ'cif' the
accused dévices in an infringiﬁg manner and by offering support and technical assistance to its
customers that encourage use of the accused products in ways that infringe the asserted claims.
In addition, ZTE has had actual knowledge of end-users’ direct infringement and that ZTE’s acts
induced such infringement since at least the date of the filing of the original Complaint in this

action, when InterDigital provided to known representatives of ZTE a copy of the complaint
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(including claim charts) filed in the International Trade Commission detailing the allegations of
Z1E’s inﬁingemgnt of the *127 patent.
196. On informatién and belief, ZTE has continued its infringement despite having
notice of the *127 patent. ZTE has committed and is committing willful patent infringement.
191. ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the *127 patent has caused Iﬁénetary
" damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

COUNT VYHI
INFRINGEMENT OF THE *636 PATENT

192. InterDi gital repeats cach and every allegation of paragraphs 1-191 as if fully set
forth herein.

193. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Huawei is now, and has been, directly infriﬁging,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the ’636 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, includiﬁg but not limited to the Comet U8150, Tap U7519, USBConnect 900, S7, Ideos
X6, USB Connect Force 4G, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

194. Huawei received notice of ‘;he ’636 patent upon the service of this Amended
Complaint by InterDigital upon Huawei at the addresses referenced herein and/or by service on
known counsel for Huawei.
| 195. The accused Huawei products are specifically designed to be used in a
3G WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Huawei products identified by InterDigital to
date that are designed to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system are configured to comply with

the Release 99, Release 4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused
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products arc specifically designed to so operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses.
Accordingly, Huawei confributorily infringes the 636 patent.

196. Huawei’s past- and continuing infringement of the *636 patent has caused
monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Huawei’s infringement
is enjoined by this Court, it will continue to causc monetary damage and irreparab-le mjury to
InterDigital.

197. In violation of 35 U.S.C. §-27l , LG is now, and has been, directly iﬁfringing,

“contributorily infringing and/or induciﬁg infringement of, the 636 patent by making, using,
importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the United
States, including but not limited to the G-Slate V909, G2x P999, AD600 USBConnect
Adrenaline, and LUU-2100TI USBConnect Turbo, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by 7
this Court.

198. LG received notice -of the ’636 patent upon the service of this Amended
Complaint by Intetbigital upon LG at the addresses referenced herein énd/or ’o)} service on
known counsel for LG. |

199. The accused LG products are speciﬁcaﬂy designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Specifically, the accused LG products identified by InterDigital to date that are designed
to be used in a UMTS (WCDMA) system é.ré cor;ﬁgure;d. to..cci.amp.l.y w1th tﬁe HSUPA, and/or
HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically designed to so operate, they
have no substantial non—inﬁir_lging. uses. Accordingly, LG contributorily infringes the

’636 patent.
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200. LG’s past and continuing infringement of the *636 patent has caused monetary

damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until LG’s infringement is enjoined by
“this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital.

201. In violation of 35 US.C. § 271, Nokia is now, and has been, directly infringing
the *636 patent 'by making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless deﬁces
with 3G capabilities in the United States, iﬁcluding but not limited to the 2730, C5-04, C2-01,
3710, 6350, 5230, 6790, E71, X6, 6700, C3-01, C5-03, C6, C6-01, E73, N8, Astound C7, E5,
E7, and E6, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

202. Nokia received notice of the *636 pﬁtent upon the sefvice of this Amended
Complaint by InterDigital upon Nokia at the addresses referenced herein and/or by service on
known counsél for Nokia.

“203. The accused Nokia products are specifically designed to Be used in a 3G
- WCDMA system. Specifically, the accused Nokia products identiﬁéd by interDigité.l to date that
are designed to be uéed in UMTS (WCDMA) are gonﬁgured to coihply with thq HSDPA,
'HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused prodﬁcts are specifically designed to so
operate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, Nokia contributorily
infringes the *636 patent.

204. Nekia’s pﬁsf and. cc;ntiﬁuing. in.fri.nger.neﬁt of thé ’6.36 fate:cit has. ca.us.ed. mdnefary |
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and until Nokia’s infringement is enjoined
by this Court, it will continue to cause monetary damage and irreparable injury to Int.erDigital.

205. In violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, ZTE is now, and has been, directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringement of, the *636 patent by manufacturing,

using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling wireless devices with 3G capabilities in the
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United States, including but not limited to the Rocket 2.0 4G Laptop Stick, F160, V9, Rocket 3.0
4G Laptop Stick, 4G HotSpot, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court.

206. ZTE received notice of th-el ’636 patent upon the service of this Amended
Cdmplaint by InterDigital upon ZTE at the addresses referenced herein and/or by service on
known counsel for ZTE. |

207. The accused ZTE products are specifically designed to be used in a 3G WCDMA
system. Speciﬁcqlly, the accused ZTE products identified by InterDigital to date that are
designed to be used in UMTS (WCDMA) are configured to comply with the Release 99, Release
4, HSDPA, HSUPA, and/or HSPA+ standards. Because the accused products are specifically -
designed to so opefate, they have no substantial non-infringing uses. Accordingly, ZTE
contributorily infringes the ’636 patent. |

208. ZTE’s past and continuing infringement of the 636 patent has caused monétary
damage and irreparable injury to InterDigital. Unless and ﬁntil ZTE’s infringement is enjoined
b)} this Court, it will continue to cause monetary daxnage énd irrepa;rable injury to InterDigital. |

JURY DEMAND

209. InterDigital demands a jury trial as to all issues that are triable by a jury in this
action.

PRAYER FOR RELIEX

210. 'WHEREFORE, InterDigital respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment
against the Defendants as follows:

(a) That Defendants are liable for infringement, contributing to the infringement,
and/or inducing the infringement of one or more claims of the "540, *406, 013, 970, 332, 830,

*127, and 636 patents, as alleged hercin;
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(b) That the Defendants and their parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors;
predecessors, assigns, and the officers, directors, agents, servants and employees of each of the
foregoing, éustomers and/or licensees and those persons acting n c;»oncert or participation with
any of them, are preliminarily and pérmanenﬂy enjoined and restrained from continued
infringement, including but not limited to using, making, hnporﬁng, offering for sale and/or
selling products that infringe, and from contributorily and/or inducing the infringement of the
Patents—in—Sﬁit prior to their expiration, including any extensions;

(c) An Order directing Defendants to file with this Court and serve upon Plaintiffs’
counsel within 30 days aﬂer the entry of the Order of injunction a report setting forth the manner
and form in which Defendants have complied with the injunction;

() An award of damages adéquate fo compensate InterDigital for the infringement
that has occurred, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284, including prejudgment and post-judgment
interest;

(d) An award of treble damages for va;illful infringement pﬁrsuant to 35U.8.C, § 284,

(€) An accéunting and/or supplemental damages for all damages occurring after any
discovery c_utoff and through the Court’s decision regarding the imposition of a permanent
injunction; |

(f) An award of attor_neyé’ fees based on this Being an e)iceiati(;nal casé pﬁrsuéﬁt .to.
35 U.S.C. § 285, including prejudgment interest on such fees;

(g) Costs and expenses in this action; and

(h) An award of any further relief that this Court deems just and proper.
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